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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON
PORTLAND DIVISION

SPEED’S AUTO SERVICES GROUP, INC.
d/b/a Towncar.com, an Oregon Corporation, and
FIESTA ENTERPRISES, LLC
d/b/a Fiesta Limousine, an Oregon Limited
Liability Company,
PLAINTIFFS,

Case No.: 3:12-cv-738
COMPLAINT
Civil Rights Action
(42 U.S.C. § 1983)
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v.
CITY OF PORTLAND, OREGON,
CITY OF PORTLAND REVENUE BUREAU,
PRIVATE FOR-HIRE TRANSPORTATION
BOARD OF REVIEW, and THOMAS W. LANNOM,
in his official capacity as Revenue Bureau Director,
DEFENDANTS.

INTRODUCTION
1.

This civil rights lawsuit seeks to vindicate the right of Portland’s limousine and

sedan operators to pursue an honest living free from unreasonable government restrictions.
2.

Defendants City of Portland, Oregon, the City’s Revenue Bureau, and its Private

For-Hire Transportation Board of Review have imposed three arbitrary and irrational regulations
on limousine and sedan operators in an effort to restrict competition in Portland’s transportation
market for the sole benefit of Portland’s taxicab companies.
3.

The City has imposed two minimum fares. The first requires all limousine and

sedan businesses to charge at least $50 for trips between downtown Portland and the airport or
the Amtrak station and the second requires them to charge at least 35% more than the prevailing
taxicab rate for routes elsewhere in the city.
4.

In addition to the minimum fare requirements, the City also requires limousine

and sedan operators to wait at least 60 minutes between the time a customer requests service and
the time the customer is picked up.
5.

These restrictions address no legitimate health or safety concerns; rather, they

exist only to protect taxicabs from competition by limousines and sedans.
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Plaintiffs Speed’s Auto Services Group, Inc. d/b/a Towncar.com and Fiesta

Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Fiesta Limousine are both small, locally-owned limousine and sedan
businesses.
7.

Defendants have targeted Plaintiffs for strict enforcement of the City’s minimum

fares. Defendants’ actions severely limit Plaintiffs’ ability to market and promote their services
with online discounts, threatening the economic viability of Plaintiffs’ businesses and depriving
Portland’s consumers of affordable limousine and sedan service.
8.

Defendants’ actions deny Plaintiffs their economic liberty—the right to pursue

their chosen occupation free from unreasonable government restrictions—in violation of the
Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
9.

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1343, 2201-2202 and

42 U.S.C. § 1983.
10.

Venue lies in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).

PARTIES
11.

Plaintiff Speed’s Auto Services Group, Inc. d/b/a Towncar.com (“Towncar.com”)

is a sedan company headquartered in Portland, Oregon and incorporated under the laws of the
State of Oregon. Towncar.com uses sedans and sport-utility vehicles (SUVs) to transport
customers in and around Portland.
12.

Plaintiff Fiesta Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Fiesta Limousine (“Fiesta”) is a limousine

and sedan company headquartered in Hillsboro, Oregon and formed under the laws of the State
of Oregon. Fiesta uses a single sedan to transport customers in and around Portland.
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Defendant City of Portland (“City”) is a political subdivision of the State of

Oregon, located in Multnomah County.
14.

Defendant City of Portland Revenue Bureau (“Bureau”) is part of the City’s

Office of Management and Finance. The Bureau issues permits to for-hire transportation
businesses and enforces the City’s transportation policies.
15.

Defendant Thomas W. Lannom is the Director of the Bureau. Mr. Lannom

directs the Bureau’s Regulatory Division, which is responsible for enforcing limousine and sedan
regulations, enforcing taxicab regulations, and ensuring equity among for-hire transportation
services. Mr. Lannom is sued in his official capacity.
16.

Defendant Private For-Hire Transportation Board of Review (“Board”) advises

the Bureau on for-hire transportation policy matters. In addition to its advisory role, the Board
has the authority to adopt or reject administrative rules proposed by the Director of the Bureau.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
Portland’s Minimum Fares and 60-Minute Wait Time
17.

Portland’s City Council and its Private For-Hire Transportation Board of Review

have adopted comprehensive regulations covering taxicabs, pedicabs, shuttles, limousines, and
sedans, among other for-hire vehicle services.
18.

Plaintiffs’ suit challenges only three of the over 50 regulations that apply to for-

hire vehicle services. In particular, Plaintiffs challenge regulations that require limousine and
sedan services, and no other for-hire transportation services, to:
a.

charge a minimum of $50 for all trips between downtown Portland and the
airport and/or the Amtrak station (Portland City Code § 16.40.480(A); Portland
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For-Hire Administrative Rule 16.40.480-01; Portland ARB-LIC-8.35) (“$50
minimum fare”);
b.

charge at least 35% more than the prevailing taxicab fare for the same route
elsewhere in the City (Portland City Code § 16.40.480(C)) (“35% minimum
fare”); and

c.

wait at least 60 minutes between the time a customer contracts for services and
the time the customer is picked up (Portland City Code § 16.40.460(A);
Portland For-Hire Administrative Rule 16.40.460-01; Portland ARB-LIC-8.33)
(“60-minute wait time”).

19.

The $50 minimum fare was adopted by the Board in December 2009, after the

City Council passed an ordinance in May 2009 requiring the Board to set a minimum fare for
service between the airport and downtown Portland’s “Fareless Square” and/or the Amtrak
station (in either direction).
20.

The 35% minimum fare was adopted by the City Council in May 2009.

21.

The 60-minute wait time was adopted by the Board in December 2009, when it

defined the word “prearranged” (as it is used in Portland City Code § 16.40.460) to require
limousines and sedans to wait at least one hour before their services will be considered
“prearranged” by the Board.
22.

Each of these three restrictions was designed to and serves only to protect taxicab

companies from competition.
23.

On information and belief, Portland’s taxicab companies complained to the City

about the negative impact that affordable, prompt limousine and sedan services have on the
profits of taxicab companies and they supported each of the three challenged restrictions.
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Each of these challenged restrictions was designed to guarantee a certain amount

of revenue to taxicab companies at the expense of limousine and sedan services.
25.

Defendants’ $50 minimum fare and 35% minimum fare (collectively “minimum

fares”) serve to artificially inflate the cost of limousine and sedan service in Portland while doing
nothing to increase the safety of those services or protect consumers.
26.

On information and belief, Defendants have no evidence that the minimum fares

address any legitimate health, safety, or consumer-protection concerns.
27.

The minimum fares do nothing to protect consumers or promote public health and

28.

Defendants’ 60-minute wait time prevents limousines and sedans from providing

safety.

prompt service while doing nothing to increase the safety of those services or protect consumers.
29.

On information and belief, Defendants possess no evidence that the 60-minute

wait time addresses any legitimate health, safety, or consumer-protection concerns.
30.

The 60-minute wait time does nothing to protect consumers or promote public

health and safety.
Plaintiff Towncar.com
31.

Towncar.com operates sedans and SUVs for-hire in the City of Portland and holds

a valid company permit and valid vehicle permits to do so. These permits ensure the safety of
Towncar.com’s vehicles and employees on the road.
32.

Towncar.com’s parent company—Plaintiff Speed’s Auto Services Group, Inc.—

has been in the sedan business for six years. The company currently has 10 sedans and SUVs in
service, all of which are operated by Towncar.com employees.
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Towncar.com employs 14 drivers and has one additional employee working in

dispatch and administrative roles. Its drivers are not independent contractors.
34.

Towncar.com provides sedan service throughout the City and its surrounding

areas. Customers use an online reservation service or call a dispatch number to request service.
After waiting the requisite hour, a Towncar.com employee picks the customer up in a luxury
vehicle of the style requested by the customer. Company drivers are always dressed
professionally and endeavor to provide high-end transportation services tailored to their
customer’s needs.
35.

Towncar.com’s rates vary based on the vehicle chosen, the pickup location, and

the drop-off location. Its lowest regular fare for a trip within Portland is approximately $45.
36.

To promote its services to new customers, on September 20, 2011, Towncar.com

offered a deal on Groupon.com for “$32 for One-Way Chauffer Services.” The deal was valid
for up to 30 miles of travel or $90 in value. The company sold 636 of these deals the first
morning of the promotion.
37.

That same day, Mr. Frank Dufay, Regulatory Program Administrator for the

Bureau, wrote a letter to Towncar.com stating that its Groupon.com promotion violated Portland
City Code § 16.40.480(C) because the $32 fare is “substantially less than the $75 or more a taxi
ride would cost for that same distance.”
38.

Mr. Dufay informed Towncar.com that it would be assessed a penalty of

$635,500 unless it canceled the promotion and refunded all of the money paid by the
Groupon.com purchasers. Mr. Dufay also advised Towncar.com that, should it fail to cancel its
promotion and go forward with the discounted fares, its company and vehicle permits would be
suspended.
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Towncar.com canceled its Groupon.com promotion and refunded all of the money

paid by its Groupon.com customers.
40.

Towncar.com wants to offer fares less than $50 for trips from downtown Portland

to Portland International Airport and for trips from the airport to downtown.
41.

Towncar.com wants to offer promotional fares elsewhere in Portland for less than

35% more than the prevailing taxicab rates for the same route.
42.

Towncar.com would like to offer these fares to market its services to and attract

new customers. If Towncar.com is prevented from offering special discounts and promotions
online, it will be unable to reward loyal customers and it will lose an effective means of
promoting its services to new customers.
43.

Towncar.com also wants to provide prompt service to customers who prearrange

its services, but who need to be picked up in less than 60 minutes. If it continues to be prohibited
from providing immediate service to customers, Towncar.com will be unable to offer the
flexibility that its customers demand and it will be unable to meet unfilled demand in the
transportation market.
44.

Towncar.com has lost potential customers, and it will continue to lose potential

customers, as a result of Defendants’ one-hour wait time.
45.

Some of Towncar.com’s existing customers are inconvenienced by Defendants’

one-hour wait time, and as a result, the company has lost the goodwill of those customers.
Plaintiff Fiesta Limousine
46.

Fiesta operates a single sedan in the City of Portland and it holds a valid company

permit and a valid vehicle permit to do so.
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Fiesta is a two-man operation in which co-owners Tom White and Ron Simmons

perform the sedan driving, dispatching, and administrative roles themselves. Fiesta does not
have employees. It sometimes uses independent contractors to supplement service.
48.

Fiesta’s rates vary based on a customer’s point of origin and drop-off point. Its

lowest, regular fare for trips to the airport is $50.
49.

To promote and market its services and attract new customers, on October 20,

2011, Fiesta offered a deal on Groupon.com for transportation to the airport for $32 from
specific zip codes (excluding most of downtown Portland). It sold 260 of these deals the first
morning of the promotion.
50.

Shortly thereafter, Mr. Frank Dufay contacted Fiesta and informed it that the

promotion violated Portland City Code 16.40.480(C) because the promotional fare was less than
$50 and was less than the rate that would be charged by a taxicab for the same route.
51.

Mr. Dufay informed Fiesta it would be assessed a penalty of $259,500 unless it

canceled the promotion and refunded all of the money paid by the Groupon.com purchasers. Mr.
Dufay also advised Fiesta that, should it fail to cancel its promotion and go forward with the
discounted fares, Fiesta’s company and vehicle permits would be suspended.
52.

On information and belief, a city employee also contacted Groupon.com directly

and demanded that it cancel Fiesta’s deal.
53.

Fiesta canceled its Groupon.com promotion and refunded all of the money paid

by its Groupon.com customers.
54.

Fiesta wants to offer fares less than $50 for trips to Portland International Airport

from downtown Portland and trips from the airport to downtown Portland.
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Fiesta wants to offer promotional fares elsewhere in Portland for less than 35%

more than the prevailing taxicab rates for the same route.
56.

Fiesta would like to offer these fares to market its services to and attract new

customers. If Fiesta is prevented from offering special discounts and promotions online, it will
be unable to reward loyal customers and it will lose an effective means of promoting its services
to new customers.
57.

Fiesta also wants to provide prompt service to customers who prearrange its

services, but who need to be picked up in less than 60 minutes. If it continues to be prohibited
from providing immediate service to customers, Fiesta will be unable to offer the flexibility that
its customers demand and it will be unable to meet unfilled demand in the transportation market.
58.

Fiesta has lost potential customers, and it will continue to lose potential

customers, as a result of Defendants’ one-hour wait time.
59.

Some of Fiesta’s existing customers are inconvenienced by Defendants’ one-hour

wait time, and as a result, the company has lost the goodwill of those customers.

INJURY TO PLAINTIFFS
60.

All preceding allegations are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

61.

The challenged limousine and sedan regulations prevent Plaintiffs from offering

prompt, efficient, and affordable service to their customers.
62.

As a direct result of these unconstitutional restrictions on their economic liberty,

Plaintiffs have lost and are continuing to lose business income and customer goodwill.
63.

Defendants’ minimum fares prohibit Plaintiffs from offering affordable limousine

and sedan services in and around Portland.
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The minimum fares increase customers’ costs for exactly the same services.

Customers have to pay more for limousine and sedan service than Plaintiffs would otherwise
willingly charge and, at the same time, customers have to pay more for taxicab service than the
market would otherwise allow.
65.

Plaintiffs have lost hundreds of new customers as a direct result of Defendants’

minimum fares.
66.

Plaintiffs have lost substantial income as a direct result of Defendants’

enforcement of the minimum fares.
67.

The minimum fares have cost Plaintiffs the goodwill for both existing and

potential customers.
68.

The 60-minute wait time has cost Plaintiffs the goodwill of both existing and

potential customers.
69.

Defendants may revoke, restrict, or refuse to renew Plaintiffs’ company and

vehicle permits if Plaintiffs fail to or refuse to comply with Defendants’ unconstitutional
minimum fares and 60-minute wait time.
70.

Defendants’ unconstitutional regulations do not address any health, safety, or

consumer protection concerns nor are they rationally related to any legitimate governmental
interest. Rather, they exist only to shield taxicab companies from Plaintiffs’ honest competition.
71.

Defendants do not require other for-hire transportation services, including

taxicabs, to charge a minimum fare; rather, the minimum fares apply exclusively to limousines,
sedans, and luxury SUVs.
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But for Defendants’ unconstitutional regulations, Plaintiffs could legally charge

their customers less than $50 for trips between downtown Portland and Portland International
Airport, could legally charge their customers less than 35% more than the prevailing taxicab
rates for routes elsewhere in Portland, and could legally pick up customers who prearranged
service less than 60 minutes in advance.
73.

As a direct result of Defendants’ unconstitutional regulations, Plaintiffs are

injured irreparably by the deprivation of their right to equal protection of the laws, deprivation of
their substantive due process right to earn an honest living free from unreasonable government
interference, and deprivation of the privileges and immunities of citizenship.
74.

If Plaintiffs must comply with Defendants’ unconstitutional regulations, they will

continue to lose income, the ability to market and promote their businesses to new customers,
and the goodwill of both existing and potential customers.

CAUSES OF ACTION
75.

Plaintiffs bring this civil rights lawsuit pursuant to the Fourteenth Amendment to

the United States Constitution; the Civil Rights Act of 1871, 42 U.S.C. § 1983; and the
Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201-2202.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(EQUAL PROTECTION OF LAW)
76.

All preceding allegations are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

77.

The Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S.

Constitution protects every American’s right to equal protection of the law.
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Under the Equal Protection Clause, when government restricts a person’s

economic liberty, its exemptions for other persons and businesses must be rationally related to a
legitimate governmental purpose.
79.

The $50 minimum fare violates Plaintiffs’ right to equal protection of law under

the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on its face and asapplied, to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from charging their customers less than $50
for their services between downtown Portland and the airport, while at the same time exempting
taxicabs and other private for-hire transportation vehicles from this minimum fare.
80.

The 35% minimum fare violates Plaintiffs’ right to equal protection of law under

the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on its face and asapplied, to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from charging their customers less than 35%
more than the prevailing taxicab rates for the same route, while exempting taxicabs and other
private for-hire transportation vehicles from comparable minimum fares.
81.

The 60-minute wait time violates Plaintiffs’ right to equal protection of law under

the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on its face and asapplied, to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from transporting customers who prearrange
service less than one hour in advance, while at the same time exempting taxicabs and other
private for-hire transportation vehicles from this minimum wait time.
82.

Any legitimate rationale for the $50 minimum fare, the 35% minimum fare, and

the 60-minute wait time is rendered irrational by virtue of the exemptions for other private forhire transportation vehicles.

Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief

13

Case 3:12-cv-00738-AC

83.

Document 1

Filed 04/26/12

Page 14 of 17

Page ID#: 14

Protecting taxicab businesses from competition at the expense of Plaintiffs’

businesses and their customers is not a valid exercise of Defendants’ police power to protect
consumers and the public health and safety.
84.

Unless Defendants are enjoined from committing the above-described violations

of the Fourteenth Amendment, Plaintiffs will continue to suffer great and irreparable harm.
SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(SUBSTANTIVE DUE PROCESS)
85.

All preceding allegations are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

86.

The Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution

protects every American’s right to pursue legitimate occupations, subject only to regulations that
are rationally related to a legitimate government purpose.
87.

The $50 minimum fare violates Plaintiffs’ right to due process of law under the

Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on its face and as-applied,
to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from charging their customers less than $50 for their
services between downtown Portland and the airport.
88.

The 35% minimum fare violates Plaintiffs’ right to due process of law under the

Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on its face and as-applied,
to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from charging their customers less than 35% more
than the prevailing taxicab rates for the same route.
89.

The 60-minute wait time violates Plaintiffs’ right to due process of law under the

Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on its face and as-applied,
to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from picking up a customer who prearranges service
less than one hour in advance.
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Protecting taxicab businesses from competition at the expense of Plaintiffs’

businesses and their customers is not a valid exercise of Defendants’ police power to protect
consumers and the public health and safety.
91.

Unless Defendants are enjoined from committing the above-described violations

of the Fourteenth Amendment, Plaintiffs will continue to suffer great and irreparable harm.
THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(PRIVILEGES OR IMMUNITIES)
92.

All preceding allegations are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.

93.

The $50 minimum fare violates Plaintiffs’ privileges or immunities of citizenship

under the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on its face and
as-applied, to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from charging their customers less than
$50 for trips between downtown Portland and the airport.
94.

The 35% minimum fare violates Plaintiffs’ privileges or immunities of citizenship

under the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on its face and
as-applied, to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from charging their customers less than
35% more than the prevailing taxicab rates for the same route.
95.

The 60-minute minimum wait time violates Plaintiffs’ privileges or immunities of

citizenship under the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983 on
its face and as-applied, to the extent Defendants prohibit Plaintiffs from picking up a customer
who prearranges service less than one hour in advance.
96.

Protecting taxicab businesses from competition at the expense of Plaintiffs’

businesses and their customers is not a valid exercise of Defendants’ police power to protect
consumers and the public health and safety.
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Unless Defendants are enjoined from committing the above-described violations

of the Fourteenth Amendment, Plaintiffs will continue to suffer great and irreparable harm.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
98.

Therefore, Plaintiffs respectfully request the following relief:

A.

A declaratory judgment that Portland City Code § 16.40.480(A), Portland For-

Hire Administrative Rule 16.40.480-01, and Portland ARB-LIC-8.35 are unconstitutional both
on their face and as-applied to Plaintiffs, to the extent they require a $50 minimum fare for the
provision of limousine and executive sedan services between downtown Portland and the airport
and/or the Amtrak station;
B.

A declaratory judgment that Portland City Code §16.40.480(C) is

unconstitutional both on its face and as-applied to Plaintiffs, to the extent it requires limousine
and executive sedans to charge rates at least 35% higher than the prevailing taxicab rate for the
same route;
C.

A declaratory judgment that Portland City Code § 16.40.460(A), Portland For-

Hire Administrative Rule 16.40.460-01, and Portland ARB-LIC-8.33 are unconstitutional both
on their face and as-applied to Plaintiffs, to the extent that they define “prearranged” to require
limousines and executive sedans to wait at least 60 minutes between the time a customer
contracts for services and the time the customer is picked up;
D.

A permanent injunction prohibiting Defendants and their agents from enforcing

the $50 minimum fare, the 35% minimum fare, and the 60-minute wait time and any
administrative rules and regulations promulgated thereunder;
E.

An award of nominal damages in the amount of $1;

F.

An award of attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses; and
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Any other legal or equitable relief to which Plaintiffs may show themselves

entitled.
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 26th day of April, 2012.

By: _______________________________
s/ Melinda J. Davison
Melinda J. Davison (OR Bar No. 930572)
Davison Van Cleve, PC
333 SW Taylor St., Suite 400
Portland, OR 97204
(503) 241-7242
(503) 241-8160 (fax)
mjd@dvclaw.com
Jeanette M. Petersen (WA Bar No. 28299)*
William R. Maurer (WA Bar No. 25451)*
Institute for Justice Washington Chapter
101 Yesler Way, Suite 603
Seattle, WA 98104
(206) 341-9300
(206) 341-9311 (fax)
jpetersen@ij.org
wmaurer@ij.org
Wesley Hottot (TX Bar No. 24063851)*
Institute for Justice Texas Chapter
816 Congress Avenue, Suite 960
Austin, TX 78701
(512) 480-5936
(512) 480-5937 (fax)
whottot@ij.org
ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS
* Motions for admission pro hac vice filed
concurrently with this document
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(Excl. Veterans)
153 Recovery of Overpayment
of Veteran’s Benefits
160 Stockholders’ Suits
190 Other Contract
195 Contract Product Liability
196 Franchise

’
’
’
’
’
’

’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’

’
’
’
’
’
’
’

V. ORIGIN
’ 1 Original
Proceeding

(For Diversity Cases Only)
PTF
Citizen of This State
’ 1

PERSONAL INJURY
310 Airplane
315 Airplane Product
Liability
320 Assault, Libel &
Slander
330 Federal Employers’
Liability
340 Marine
345 Marine Product
Liability
350 Motor Vehicle
355 Motor Vehicle
Product Liability
360 Other Personal
Injury
362 Personal Injury Med. Malpractice
CIVIL RIGHTS
440 Other Civil Rights
441 Voting
442 Employment
443 Housing/
Accommodations
445 Amer. w/Disabilities Employment
446 Amer. w/Disabilities Other
448 Education

’ 2

’

2

Incorporated and Principal Place
of Business In Another State

’

5

’ 5

Citizen or Subject of a
Foreign Country

’ 3

’

3

Foreign Nation

’

6

’ 6

FORFEITURE/PENALTY

PERSONAL INJURY
’ 365 Personal Injury Product Liability
’ 367 Health Care/
Pharmaceutical
Personal Injury
Product Liability
’ 368 Asbestos Personal
Injury Product
Liability
PERSONAL PROPERTY
’ 370 Other Fraud
’ 371 Truth in Lending
’ 380 Other Personal
Property Damage
’ 385 Property Damage
Product Liability
PRISONER PETITIONS
’ 510 Motions to Vacate
Sentence
Habeas Corpus:
’ 530 General
’ 535 Death Penalty
’ 540 Mandamus & Other
’ 550 Civil Rights
’ 555 Prison Condition
’ 560 Civil Detainee Conditions of
Confinement

and One Box for Defendant)
PTF
DEF
Incorporated or Principal Place
’ 4 ’ 4
of Business In This State

DEF
’ 1

Citizen of Another State

(Place an “X” in One Box Only)
TORTS

’
REAL PROPERTY
210 Land Condemnation
220 Foreclosure
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment
240 Torts to Land
245 Tort Product Liability
290 All Other Real Property

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff)

’ 625 Drug Related Seizure
of Property 21 USC 881
’ 690 Other

BANKRUPTCY
’ 422 Appeal 28 USC 158
’ 423 Withdrawal
28 USC 157
PROPERTY RIGHTS
’ 820 Copyrights
’ 830 Patent
’ 840 Trademark

’
’
’
’
’
’

LABOR
710 Fair Labor Standards
Act
720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations
740 Railway Labor Act
751 Family and Medical
Leave Act
790 Other Labor Litigation
791 Empl. Ret. Inc.
Security Act

’
’
’
’
’

SOCIAL SECURITY
861 HIA (1395ff)
862 Black Lung (923)
863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))
864 SSID Title XVI
865 RSI (405(g))

FEDERAL TAX SUITS
’ 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff
or Defendant)
’ 871 IRS—Third Party
26 USC 7609

OTHER STATUTES
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’
’

’

375 False Claims Act
400 State Reapportionment
410 Antitrust
430 Banks and Banking
450 Commerce
460 Deportation
470 Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations
480 Consumer Credit
490 Cable/Sat TV
850 Securities/Commodities/
Exchange
890 Other Statutory Actions
891 Agricultural Acts
893 Environmental Matters
895 Freedom of Information
Act
896 Arbitration
899 Administrative Procedure
Act/Review or Appeal of
Agency Decision
950 Constitutionality of
State Statutes

IMMIGRATION
’ 462 Naturalization Application
’ 463 Habeas Corpus Alien Detainee
(Prisoner Petition)
’ 465 Other Immigration
Actions

(Place an “X” in One Box Only)

Transferred from
’ 2 Removed from
’ 3 Remanded from
’ 4 Reinstated or ’ 5 another district
’ 6 Multidistrict
State Court
Appellate Court
Reopened
Litigation
(specify)
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

42 U.S.C. § 1983

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION Brief description of cause:
Unconstitutional regulation restricting competition and violating equal protection of law

’ CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
VII. REQUESTED IN
UNDER F.R.C.P. 23
COMPLAINT:
VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
(See instructions):
JUDGE
IF ANY
DATE

CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
’ Yes
’ No
JURY DEMAND:

DEMAND $

DOCKET NUMBER

SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

s/ Melinda J. Davison

04/26/2012
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
RECEIPT #

AMOUNT

Print

APPLYING IFP
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MAG. JUDGE
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Attachment to Civil Cover Sheet
Speed’s Auto Service Group, Inc. and Fiesta Enterprises, LLC v. City of Portland, Oregon, City
of Portland Revenue Bureau, Private For-Hire Transportation Board of Review, and Thomas W.
Lannom, in his official capacity as Revenue Bureau Director
I. (c) Attorneys:
Melinda J. Davison (OR Bar No. 930572)±
DAVISON VAN CLEVE, PC
333 SW Taylor St., Suite 400
Portland, OR 97204
(503) 241-7242
(503) 241-8160 (fax)
mjd@dvclaw.com
Wesley Hottot (TX Bar No. 24063851)*
INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE TEXAS CHAPTER
816 Congress Ave., Suite 960
Austin, TX 78701
(512) 480-5936
(512) 480-5937 (fax)
whottot@ij.org
Jeanette M. Petersen (WA Bar No. 28299)*
INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE WASHINGTON CHAPTER
101 Yesler Way, Suite 603
Seattle, WA 98104
(206) 341-9300
(206) 341-9311 (fax)
jpetersen@ij.org
William R. Maurer (WSBA No. 25451)*
INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE WASHINGTON CHAPTER
101 Yesler Way, Suite 603
Seattle, WA 98104
(206) 341-9300
(206) 341-9311 (fax)
wmaurer@ij.org

± Designated local counsel
* Motions for admission pro hac vice concurrently filed
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AO 398 (Rev. 01/09) Notice of a Lawsuit and Request to Waive Service of a Summons

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the
District
of Oregon
__________
District
of __________
Speeds Auto Services Group, et al.
Plaintiff
v.

City of Porltand, Oregon, et al.
Defendant

)
)
)
)
)

Civil Action No. 3:12-cv-738

NOTICE OF A LAWSUIT AND REQUEST TO WAIVE SERVICE OF A SUMMONS
To: City of Portland, Oregon - care of Portland City Attorney as authorized agent
(Name of the defendant or - if the defendant is a corporation, partnership, or association - an officer or agent authorized to receive service)

Why are you getting this?
A lawsuit has been filed against you, or the entity you represent, in this court under the number shown above.
A copy of the complaint is attached.
This is not a summons, or an official notice from the court. It is a request that, to avoid expenses, you waive formal
service of a summons by signing and returning the enclosed waiver. To avoid these expenses, you must return the signed
waiver within 30 days (give at least 30 days, or at least 60 days if the defendant is outside any judicial district of the United States)
from the date shown below, which is the date this notice was sent. Two copies of the waiver form are enclosed, along with
a stamped, self-addressed envelope or other prepaid means for returning one copy. You may keep the other copy.
What happens next?
If you return the signed waiver, I will file it with the court. The action will then proceed as if you had been served
on the date the waiver is filed, but no summons will be served on you and you will have 60 days from the date this notice
is sent (see the date below) to answer the complaint (or 90 days if this notice is sent to you outside any judicial district of
the United States).
If you do not return the signed waiver within the time indicated, I will arrange to have the summons and complaint
served on you. And I will ask the court to require you, or the entity you represent, to pay the expenses of making service.
Please read the enclosed statement about the duty to avoid unnecessary expenses.
I certify that this request is being sent to you on the date below.
Date:

s/ Melinda J. Davison

04/26/2012

Signature of the attorney or unrepresented party

Melinda J. Davison
Printed name

DAVISON VAN CLEVE, PC
333 SW Taylor St., Suite 400
Portland, OR 97204
Address

mjd@dvclaw.com
E-mail address

(503) 241-7242
Telephone number

Print

Save As...

Reset
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AO 398 (Rev. 01/09) Notice of a Lawsuit and Request to Waive Service of a Summons

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the
District
of Oregon
__________
District
of __________
Speeds Auto Services Group, et al.
Plaintiff
v.

City of Porltand, Oregon, et al.
Defendant

)
)
)
)
)

Civil Action No. 3:12-cv-738

NOTICE OF A LAWSUIT AND REQUEST TO WAIVE SERVICE OF A SUMMONS
To: City of Portland, Oregon - care of Portland City Attorney as authorized agent
(Name of the defendant or - if the defendant is a corporation, partnership, or association - an officer or agent authorized to receive service)

Why are you getting this?
A lawsuit has been filed against you, or the entity you represent, in this court under the number shown above.
A copy of the complaint is attached.
This is not a summons, or an official notice from the court. It is a request that, to avoid expenses, you waive formal
service of a summons by signing and returning the enclosed waiver. To avoid these expenses, you must return the signed
waiver within 30 days (give at least 30 days, or at least 60 days if the defendant is outside any judicial district of the United States)
from the date shown below, which is the date this notice was sent. Two copies of the waiver form are enclosed, along with
a stamped, self-addressed envelope or other prepaid means for returning one copy. You may keep the other copy.
What happens next?
If you return the signed waiver, I will file it with the court. The action will then proceed as if you had been served
on the date the waiver is filed, but no summons will be served on you and you will have 60 days from the date this notice
is sent (see the date below) to answer the complaint (or 90 days if this notice is sent to you outside any judicial district of
the United States).
If you do not return the signed waiver within the time indicated, I will arrange to have the summons and complaint
served on you. And I will ask the court to require you, or the entity you represent, to pay the expenses of making service.
Please read the enclosed statement about the duty to avoid unnecessary expenses.
I certify that this request is being sent to you on the date below.
Date:

s/ Melinda J. Davison

04/26/2012

Signature of the attorney or unrepresented party

Melinda J. Davison
Printed name

DAVISON VAN CLEVE, PC
333 SW Taylor St., Suite 400
Portland, OR 97204
Address

mjd@dvclaw.com
E-mail address

(503) 241-7242
Telephone number

Print

Save As...

Reset
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AO 398 (Rev. 01/09) Notice of a Lawsuit and Request to Waive Service of a Summons

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the
District
of Oregon
__________
District
of __________
Speeds Auto Services Group, et al.
Plaintiff
v.

City of Porltand, Oregon, et al.
Defendant

)
)
)
)
)

Civil Action No. 3:12-cv-738

NOTICE OF A LAWSUIT AND REQUEST TO WAIVE SERVICE OF A SUMMONS
To: City of Portland, Oregon - care of Portland City Attorney as authorized agent
(Name of the defendant or - if the defendant is a corporation, partnership, or association - an officer or agent authorized to receive service)

Why are you getting this?
A lawsuit has been filed against you, or the entity you represent, in this court under the number shown above.
A copy of the complaint is attached.
This is not a summons, or an official notice from the court. It is a request that, to avoid expenses, you waive formal
service of a summons by signing and returning the enclosed waiver. To avoid these expenses, you must return the signed
waiver within 30 days (give at least 30 days, or at least 60 days if the defendant is outside any judicial district of the United States)
from the date shown below, which is the date this notice was sent. Two copies of the waiver form are enclosed, along with
a stamped, self-addressed envelope or other prepaid means for returning one copy. You may keep the other copy.
What happens next?
If you return the signed waiver, I will file it with the court. The action will then proceed as if you had been served
on the date the waiver is filed, but no summons will be served on you and you will have 60 days from the date this notice
is sent (see the date below) to answer the complaint (or 90 days if this notice is sent to you outside any judicial district of
the United States).
If you do not return the signed waiver within the time indicated, I will arrange to have the summons and complaint
served on you. And I will ask the court to require you, or the entity you represent, to pay the expenses of making service.
Please read the enclosed statement about the duty to avoid unnecessary expenses.
I certify that this request is being sent to you on the date below.
Date:

s/ Melinda J. Davison

04/26/2012

Signature of the attorney or unrepresented party

Melinda J. Davison
Printed name

DAVISON VAN CLEVE, PC
333 SW Taylor St., Suite 400
Portland, OR 97204
Address

mjd@dvclaw.com
E-mail address

(503) 241-7242
Telephone number

Print

Save As...

Reset
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AO 398 (Rev. 01/09) Notice of a Lawsuit and Request to Waive Service of a Summons

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the
District
of Oregon
__________
District
of __________
Speeds Auto Services Group, et al.
Plaintiff
v.

City of Porltand, Oregon, et al.
Defendant

)
)
)
)
)

Civil Action No. 3:12-cv-738

NOTICE OF A LAWSUIT AND REQUEST TO WAIVE SERVICE OF A SUMMONS
To: City of Portland, Oregon - care of Portland City Attorney as authorized agent
(Name of the defendant or - if the defendant is a corporation, partnership, or association - an officer or agent authorized to receive service)

Why are you getting this?
A lawsuit has been filed against you, or the entity you represent, in this court under the number shown above.
A copy of the complaint is attached.
This is not a summons, or an official notice from the court. It is a request that, to avoid expenses, you waive formal
service of a summons by signing and returning the enclosed waiver. To avoid these expenses, you must return the signed
waiver within 30 days (give at least 30 days, or at least 60 days if the defendant is outside any judicial district of the United States)
from the date shown below, which is the date this notice was sent. Two copies of the waiver form are enclosed, along with
a stamped, self-addressed envelope or other prepaid means for returning one copy. You may keep the other copy.
What happens next?
If you return the signed waiver, I will file it with the court. The action will then proceed as if you had been served
on the date the waiver is filed, but no summons will be served on you and you will have 60 days from the date this notice
is sent (see the date below) to answer the complaint (or 90 days if this notice is sent to you outside any judicial district of
the United States).
If you do not return the signed waiver within the time indicated, I will arrange to have the summons and complaint
served on you. And I will ask the court to require you, or the entity you represent, to pay the expenses of making service.
Please read the enclosed statement about the duty to avoid unnecessary expenses.
I certify that this request is being sent to you on the date below.
Date:

s/ Melinda J. Davison

04/26/2012

Signature of the attorney or unrepresented party

Melinda J. Davison
Printed name

DAVISON VAN CLEVE, PC
333 SW Taylor St., Suite 400
Portland, OR 97204
Address

mjd@dvclaw.com
E-mail address

(503) 241-7242
Telephone number

Print

Save As...

Reset

